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Howard Community College  
ITB: North Storage and Utility Building 
Bid Number: 19-002 
ITB Opening Date: December 7, 2018 

 
ADDENDUM No. 1 

 
The Door Hardware and Design document from the College’s current Nursing and ST Building renovation 
project has been uploaded to the College’s procurement website and should be used as the basis of design for the 
door hardware for this project. 
 
This addendum incorporates the minutes from the pre-proposal conference held on November 14, 218 at 1:30 
p.m. 
 
In attendance for the college: Domonic Cusimano, Director of Procurement; Chuck Nightingale, Executive 
Director of Facilities; and Travis Hopkins, Facilities Planner. 
 
The College is inviting proposals from qualified professional firms to provide design/build services for a new 
storage and utility building.   
 
A few key dates and points that were emphasized: 
Signed and Sealed proposals must be received in the Finance office by 2:00 pm on December 7, 2018.  Late 
proposals will not be accepted.  Proposers must use the label included in the ITB documents on the outside of the 
package.  Parking is quite limited on campus.  Each proposer needs to plan for adequate time for delivery. 
 
All questions are to be submitted to the Director of Procurement in writing by no later than 10:00 a.m. on 
November 30, 2018.  Answers will be issued as addendums through the College’s solicitation page.  It is the 
responsibility of each proposer to ensure that they have received all addendums.  Receipt of each addendum must 
be indicated on the appropriate form.   
 
The selection process is a multi-step process.  After the technical proposals have been evaluated, the group of 
bidders who satisfy the technical proposal evaluation requirements will have their price bids opened. 
 
The Director of Procurement is the sole point of contact on this solicitation.  No one else at the College may be 
contacted about this solicitation until after award has been made by the proper authority.   Failure to comply with 
this requirement could result in disqualification.  It is the intention of the College that a recommendation for 
award will be presented to the Board of Trustees in January.  A Notice to Proceed will be issued after award.  
Firms should note that the solicitation is still considered in process until this time, even if their firm has not 
proceeded to a particular phase. 
 
Discussion of the scope of work 
The selected firm shall design and construct a new structure on the North side of the athletic complex to 
accommodate equipment and services to support the athletic complex. This additional storage will provide 
enhanced services to the complex by locating resources closer to where they are needed, reducing the time needed 
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to transport supplies, and by providing protection for equipment which may not currently have a permanent 
storage location. It is expected that the General Contractor will be the primary point of contact for the college and 
be the lead for the Design/Build team. This project does not contain any LEED requirements; however, the 
College does encourage following LEED standards where applicable. 
 
In preparing the proposal, the firm is expected to review the Howard Community College (HCC) North Storage 
and Utility Building Phase 1 Programming and Concepts document dated October 15, 2018. The construction 
delivery method will be design/build. The project shall be completed by December 31, 2019.   
 
Questions: 
Q1. Are firms required to use Heritage Building Services, the vendor used for the programming document cost 
estimate, for the pre-fabricated building? 
No. 
 
Q2. Drawing C-203, the electrical plan, references an existing irrigation system that is on site. Is the winning 
firm expected to tie that in as part of the scope of work? 
No. 
 
Q3. The meeting minutes in the programming document discuss a fire hydrant. Is installation of a fire hydrant on 
site part of the scope of work? 
Yes, firms should plan to install a fire hydrant. 
 
Q4. Is the design/build team expected to provide any of the equipment listed in the program matrix, numbered 1 
through 14, of drawing C-202? 
Those items will be provided by the college. 
 
Q5. Does the College have a preference for the color of the pre-fabricated Metal building? Should it be a 
standard color or custom color? 
If possible, the College would like the building to be a standard color that matches the color of the pre-existing 
grey colored pole barn storage building (not the metal COSCO container that is located directly adjacent to the 
job site) near the athletic fields, which was a standard shade of gray when constructed. The College acknowledges 
that depending on the stock colors available from the pre-fabricated building vendor for this project, the color of 
the new building may not be an exact match to the pre-existing storage building.   
 
Q6. There seem to be some costs missing from programming document cost estimate, such as the foundation 
design fees, exterior doors, and conditioning of the IT rooms. Is the college aware? 
Yes. The cost estimate in the programming document was done before the project requirements were finalized 
and was done for order of magnitude costing to determine the range of the project. The cost estimate does not 
reflect the allocated budget for the project. 
 
Q7. Will there be parking at the building site? 
Parking in the nearby garages or surface lot will depend on the time of the school year, but may be available. 
There will be space at the building site for several parking spots for the superintendent and each of the trades if 
there is no parking available on campus. 
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Q8. LEED as applicable. LEED is voluntary, so what does that mean for this building? 
The county requires that projects on campus follow the energy code. The College strives to follow as many other 
LEED standards as possible, but they are not required for this project. The College desires that this be a 
sustainable project where feasible and it is up to individual proposers to determine how that should be reflected in 
the proposal and work plan. 
 
Q9. Has concept storm water management been approved? If not, is it expected that approval will be expedited?  
No, it has not been approved. For past campus projects, approval has generally been obtained by the 3 month 
review. The college will assist where possible to speed up approvals. It should be noted that this project has not 
gone through any formal county review other than an informal meeting. 
 
Q10. Where can the contractor place dumpsters? 
Firm will be able to stage dumpsters in close proximity to the job site.  
 
Q11. What is the definition of a conditioned space for this building, as referenced in the description of the IT 
Infrastructure room on page 5 of the programming document? 
It is expected that a conditioned room will be heated, cooled, and ventilated. 
 
Q12. When does the College expect to provide a notice to proceed to the winning firm? 
The college expects to provide the notice to proceed shortly after the January 23, 2019, Board of Trustees 
meeting. It is anticipated that the notice of intent to award will be sent at the beginning of January. 
 
Q13. There seems to be a telecommunications line that seems to run through the footprint of the site (labeled E&T 
on drawing C-201). What is that? 
It is a power feed to the irrigation system. The scope of work shall include rerouting it around the site during 
construction. The irrigation power feed will be tied it in at the utility building at a later date and is not a part of the 
scope of work for this project. 
 
Q14. We are unable to control the length of the permitting process. What will happen if the permitting process 
takes longer than expected and extends the length of the project past when it should be finished? How should 
firms account for this in the project schedule? 
The construction period in the submitted schedule should be a definite period, but the college understands that the 
permitting period is difficult to anticipate and that some wiggle room may be necessary there. The college will 
work with the winning firm to deal with any unforeseen permitting delays and understands that this could delay 
project completion through no fault of the contractor. 
 
Q15. What is the college’s intention with the additional alternate? 
The College currently has 2 electrical feeds run to every building on campus for redundancy purposes. The North 
Storage and Utility Building is only to have one electrical feed run to the building, but the college would like to 
know how much it would cost to add an additional feed. 
 
 
A site visit immediately followed. 
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Additional questions received 
 
Q16. RFP Section 2.7, Key Supervisory Personnel states that "Engineers, Project Managers, and Superintendents 
[. . .] must have at least three (3) years of experience in their current position within the Bidder’s organization." 
Would the College please clarify whether employees who have been with their current firm less than three years 
are ineligible to be proposed for this project, regardless of the individuals’ overall level of professional 
experience? 
Employees who have been with their current firm less than three years are eligible to be proposed for the project if 
the proposing firm can show that the employee in question has at least three years of comparable experience at 
another firm or firms. 
 
Q17. RFP section 2.9, Project Experience states that "Larger projects may be submitted, but will receive reduced 
credit unless the project is included to show higher education experience or laboratory installation experience." 
Would the College please confirm that it will rate laboratory installation experience as relevant to this scope of 
work? 
Laboratory installation experience is not relevant to this scope of work. That sentence should read “Larger 
projects may be submitted, but will receive reduced credit unless the project is included to show higher education 
experience.” 
 
Q18. Does the prime A/E firm need to provide the same information required of the Prime Contractor in "2.6 
Overview of the Firm" (e.g., number of employees, Current Workload form, lawsuits information, etc.) as well as 
the required forms (e.g. Contractor Information, Conflict of Interest, Ethics Statement, Financial Statements, 
etc.)? 
No. The prime A/E firm is only responsible for providing the information specified in section 2.7. 
 
Q19. Can a “prime Architectural/Engineering firm” (reference RFP page 6, 2.7 Key Supervisory Personnel, 
“Design/Engineering”) be on multiple design/build teams (i.e., as a lead design subconsultant to multiple prime 
contractors)? 
No. A prime Architectural/Engineering firm may only be a member of one proposed design/build team. 
 
Q20. Is an electronic copy (USB flash drive or CD) required for the Price Bid as well as the Technical Proposal? 
Yes. 
 
Q21. If no Technical Proposal material is designated as "confidential" in accordance with RFP Section 4.6, is a 
redacted copy of the proposal still required? 
No. 
 
Q22. Is the required "redacted copy" of the technical proposal a hard copy only, or is both a hard copy and an 
electronic copy of the redacted proposal required? 
A hard copy or electronic copy of the redacted proposal is acceptable. There is no need to submit both. 
 
 
Issued on November 15, 2018. 
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